

Table of Contents

AC 1.1 Value and purpose of the people profession with respect to the CIPD Profession Map	3
AC 1.2 The ethics followed by CIPD and how they would impact when practised	3
The ethics followed by CIPD	3
Their influence when practised in the workplace	4
AC 1.3 Importance of professional people participating in discussions	5
Reasons for the importance of such participation.	5
Reasons for failure to influence people by the people practitioner	5
AC 1.4. How and when to react on illegal and unethical matters.	5
AC 2.1. Theoretical perspective of people being valued and fairly treated in a business	6
AC 2.2. Designing and inclusively checking people practises initiatives.	7
AC 2.3. Building Inclusive and Positive Working Environment - Self-reflection and Feedback.	8
AC 3.1. The Evolving People Practitioner and My CPD Plan.	9
AC 3.2. Self-Assessment of Strengths, Weaknesses and Areas for Development and Feedbarfor CIPD Associate Level HR Manager	
AC 3.3. CPD Plan: Addressing Development Needs for HR Management Post. Justification	of
the Chosen Formal and Informal Developmental Activities	.12
AC 3.4. Effectiveness of Developmental Activities in Respect to Enhancing Working Behaviorand Performance	
References	.15

AC 1.1 Value and purpose of the people profession with respect to the CIPD Profession Map

The CIPD acts as an essential professional figure in the UK and around the world for the HR and L&D professions. It aims at identifying, recognizing, and preserving human resource

professionals. It is inclined to map out competency, qualification, and occupation while figuring out the gaps between industrial needs and educational outcomes. It focuses on establishing appropriate and targeted educational programs that would align with the specific requirements of the professional market (Surono *et al.*, 2024). The main purpose of the CIPD Profession Map is to outline the requirements as well as the expectations of HR professionals with respect to values, behaviours, and knowledge (Johnston and Johnston, 2024). A recent study has shown Marchington who served as the Chief Examiner and the Moderator of the Standards, held the responsibility for providing the learning objectives and ensuring that the outcomes were aligned to the purpose. He also contributed to the development of the CIPD Profession Map regarding employee relations which used voice insights of working staff from forums to change the workplace into a positive work culture. He was committed to promoting the employee voice in decision-making which mirrors the CIPD's core values and professional standards (Timming and Macneil, 2023).

AC 1.2 The ethics followed by CIPD and how they would impact when practised

The ethics followed by CIPD

1. Work matters

Work is essential and is regarded as a driving force for workers, organisations, and the economy as a whole. Good work provides recognition of personal skills and talents and fair contribution of the individual towards the organisation. Good work provides long-term individual and organisational benefits thus balancing social responsibility and economic stability. Studies have shown supporting carers and the cordial relationship between line managers and co-workers created informal flexibility in the workplace during the pandemic (Fahy *et al.*, 2024).

2. People matter

CIPD believes people should be provided with opportunities to work and provide for their performances, behaviour, contribution, and development towards the organisation. Studies have shown a survey by CIPD that many businesses in the UK have been awarded and provided financial incentives for encouraging eco-friendly behaviour. Bonuses were provided to employees for creating a green culture and eco-friendly work practices with their efforts (Alwi *et al.*, 2024).

3. Professionalism matters

CIPD focuses on playing the role of an ambassador with integrity and promoting better work for the professional people. It's committed to value-based development and decision-making while using its expertise to understand value creation and balancing risk simultaneously. Recent CIPD surveys have shown that creating new professional development prospects and job enrichments have increased job availability, thus promoting working people over technology advancements (Fasae, 2024).

Their influence when practised in the workplace

To work in people practise CIPD would need to focus on building trust and make decisions on the basis of above mentioned values that it commits to follow. It should put emphasis on creating an ethical climate providing norms about "the right behaviour" for professional people. The workplace environment needs to be flexible and also would provide job satisfaction and employee wellbeing. It's the set of rules for compliance and enforcement, even for decision-making purposes. The mental well-being of employees is to be prioritised while unethical behaviour and workplace politics should be eradicated. Rewarding professionals for their excellent performances should be normalised and accountability where required should be accepted.

AC 1.3 Importance of professional people participating in discussions

Reasons for the importance of such participation

Under critical circumstances, the workforce is expected to raise concerns that need to be dealt with beforehand. "Speak up" services are calling them directly or indirectly to discuss the matter which in turn would solve the problem quickly and safely without any risk. Failure in that matter from the practitioner's side would create disruption in innovations and creativity. There should

be other informal ways to speak up before breaking the regulations so that hierarchy doesn't become a barrier in the process. Professionals should focus on building cordial relationships with the workforce which would motivate them and they willingly speak up for the right thing without hesitation. Furthermore, it would help in recognizing workplace ethics that might need immediate concerns.

Reasons for failure to influence people by the people practitioner

Research has shown that HR personnel believe they need no training for handling people and formal training is enough for coping with their roles. This leads to disruption in clarity of communication, further influencing discrimination, intensifying and overloading work for the junior rank staff (Anvari *et al.*, 2024). Studies have shown that most HR professionals are invested in solving workplace disputes which includes dealing with ethical issues, grievances, regulatory compliance, and investigating the issues. Leaving these problems to the line managers only leads to a lack of awareness and knowledge of fairness and justice (Ropper and Higgins., 2020).

AC 1.4. How and when to react on illegal and unethical matters

In conducting people business, a people professional need to address unethical and Illegal situation and do so with the right ethical standards as well as the law.

For unethical matters, consider this example: Sexual harassment in the workplace can be as simple as a manager who gives certain employees preferential treatment in giving out tasks and rewarding deserving employees including promotions. This is best done when one notices that a certain employee has been treated preferentially, in a manner that is against the company's antifavouritism policy. To deal with this, one should first identify cases of unfair treatment and record them systematically (Alkashami, 2022). Thirdly, take time and privately arrange a meeting with the manager and present to him/her the observed behaviour and effects and point out the provisions of the company policies and standards. Introduce performance assessments that will reduce the possibility of bias in the performance assessments. Lastly, briefly communicate to remind them that the changes are to be made.

In the case of illegal matters, for instance: An employee complains of discrimination based on race he or she faced in their working station. This ought to be raised as soon as one is briefed on

the report since it goes against the anti-discrimination laws. In response to this, it is crucial to record the account of the employee in writing whilst taking caution on bias. Explain to them about the rights and the policy of non-discrimination in the organization. Alert the management and corporate counsel and proceed to the company's legal process according to the set laws. Make sure that the complainant is protected and their identity kept off all internal and external communications (Petzer, 2020). If allegations are true, then it warrants the right action to be taken against the offenders. Organise extra diversity and inclusion training, so that such cases would not happen in the future.

Nonetheless, in both situations, swift action needs to be taken, it is crucial to adhere to the company policies, observe privacy and security measures, report every move made and seek legal advice if required. Handling such cases professionally in this capacity helps people practitioners maintain ethically and legally required performance besides promoting fairness in workplace.

AC 2.1. Theoretical perspective of people being valued and fairly treated in a business

From a moral angle, and also from a business perspective, it is important for the workers to feel welcome and be treated right in the workplace setting. From an analytical point of view, the hierarchy of needs as postulated by Maslow exposes the belongingness need and esteem need categories (Russo *et al.*, 2020). Essentially, if inclusiveness promotes the social and esteem needs of the employees, they tend to be more engaged and productive. Moreover, there is Herzberg's Two-Factor Theory which suggests that the factors resulting in job satisfaction like recognition and being treated fairly have to facilitate performance to achieve more.

Inclusion and valuation in the workplace are also in congruence with Social Exchange Theory, which states that favourable treatment by employers leads to employee favourability. Respect and recognition can go a long way in showing the workers that they are appreciated and this leads to increased loyalty, commitment and ultimately, good performance (Isede, 2022). This helps to lower turnover rates and create a positive cultural setting within the workplace.

For the business venture, diversity in the workplace enhances creativity. RBV postulates that managerial resources, which include workforce diversity, could help generate more perspectives and ideas that can be used as a competitive advantage (Berrington, 2022). Moreover, companies

that embrace Diversity and inclusion management practices are likely to attract and retain the best workforce by out-competing other rivals.

My own experience aligns with the aforementioned theories of instructional communication. In my practice, I have noted that employee engagement tends to be higher at workplaces with strong procedural justice and promotions as teams become more creative and productive. Colleagues have always mentioned that a good approach and equal opportunity for all will enhance their sense of loyalty, thus helping the organisation to achieve better morale.

AC 2.2. Designing and inclusively checking people practises initiatives

Integrating inclusive practices and ideals into the organisation's operations is the first step toward creating true inclusion. Even while the people profession cannot take full responsibility for inclusiveness, it nonetheless has a significant role to play. In addition to ensuring that policies and procedures are inclusive, they may help employees, line managers, and senior leaders develop inclusive behaviours and values. They can also challenge organisational values and behaviours that do not actively promote inclusion (Roche, 2021). Crucially, every action must be led by organisational data and thoroughly assessed; further study is required to determine the best practices for fostering inclusion.

Resilience is frequently cited as a source of both human and commercial benefit, therefore it's critical to comprehend what it means, how HR can promote employee resilience, and how to create organisational cultures that support resilience via people policies and practices, eventually helping to bring inclusiveness. Resilience enhances people's creativity and level of involvement at work in addition to their well-being and capacity to handle stress. Resilience helps inclusive people be better able to adjust, manage, and react constructively to pressures at work (Batool *et al.*, 2022). Strong bonds between the people manager and the employees benefit the entire team and promote resilience. Other behaviours that are crucial for a manager to exhibit include goal-setting, acknowledging accomplishments, mentoring your team, fostering a healthy work atmosphere, and soon

Checking Inclusivity after Implementation of an initiative: it should measure the participation rate and surveys of the employment; analyse impacts on a key metric like retention and promotion rates; Focus Groups and interviews; share findings and inclusive surveys and external audits.

AC 2.3. Building Inclusive and Positive Working Environment - Self-reflection and Feedback

Being an aspiring people's professional, I understand that working with others and interactions have to be inclusive and positive. Regarding this, it is important that I embody the desired changes like positive and inclusive behaviour through which I would like to encourage and help the organisations I work in.

Some key ways I try to work inclusively by incorporating expert feedback:

- I pay extra attention and ensure that I listen with the purpose of absorbing the information, not just to feed the other person an answer. I listen by asking questions, rephrasing what I have heard and understood, and making sure that my whole focus is on the speaker. I think that active listening assists me in understanding various views, opinions, standpoints and perspectives of the people.
- I look for people who think and do things differently from me because I get different solutions for different problems. It is a practice that I take care of, not to end up talking only to familiar people or the most vocal in a particular group. It is always advisable to embrace diversity in ideas and opinions since it ensures that such an outcome is always the best.
- In my approach, I adapt the manner of communication with the people around me. Some choose email while others prefer phone, and some would rather have a face-to-face conversation. I also modify the kind of words that I use as well as the pitch that I employ depending on who I am addressing.
- When I see that exclusion or bias is taking place, I intervene, because I am unable to tolerate any discrimination. I do this softly, sometimes I try to accept suggestions and change the topic in a manner that includes the opponent. I also try to find how to integrate diversity into organisational procedures, standards, and functions.

Some key ways I try to establish a positive working environment and relationships by incorporating expert feedback:

 Some people may sometimes act in ways that may be perceived as wrong or illmannered, I will always presume they are naturally well-mannered but perhaps they are

- having a bad day or getting misunderstood by other people. This assists me in keeping my cool and avoids any abusive response from my side as a people professional.
- Whenever there are problems arising, I try to find possibilities of solving the problems rather than dwell on the problems. I say "What can we do about this?" And come up with solutions. Despite any hardship, I remain optimistic. I smile and use a lively tone. Positivity is contagious and sustainable in the long run.
- I try to acknowledge small successes. Positive reinforcement can significantly boost people's motivation and create a positive culture.

As an aspiring people's professional and after seeking expert's advice, I understood that working with others and being inclusive is essential. This is a continuous journey of learning, unlearning and development, but one thing that is permanent to empowering individuals and organisations.

AC 3.1. The Evolving People Practitioner and My CPD Plan

The people's practitioner role is changing in nature radically. Originally, the HRM was more operational and involved in tasks such as staffing and compensation. The new trend is more strategic and analytical and concentrates on the employee experience (EX) (Markey et al., 2021). This implies that people's professionals have to find ways to reinvent themselves.

Key Trends Shaping the Evolution:

- The Rise of People Analytics: Analysing data is important in determining the attitude of the employees, the lack of talent in the organisation and the potential need in the future. Skills in tools and techniques such as HR analytical tools will also be critical.
- Focus on Employee Experience: EX is a crucial element since it must be favourable for attracting and maintaining good employees. This calls for a better understanding of the employees' needs and designing programs that foster their health, participation, and growth.
- Acceleration of Digital Transformation and the Shift to a Hybrid Workforce: Remote
 workers present a challenge with regard to communication, coordination and
 performance regulation which demands new strategies of management. Such skills as
 virtual leadership and the use of tools will be an asset (Baughan, 2022).

My CPD plan will address these evolving demands by incorporating the following elements:

- Skills Development: I will take courses in HR analytics, data visualisation, and learning the design of enhancing the experience of the employees. This will enable me to convert data into actionable groundwork, which will enhance EX to the benefit of the organisation.
- Staying Relevant and Equipped: I will engage myself in continuing professional development activities such as conferences and webinars in order to enhance my knowledge of the current trends and practices in the management of people.
- Networking: Developing positive working relationships with other people' professionals
 in the virtual world will enable me to discuss effective practices in the field with the
 professionals and vice versa.

Thus, through consistent personal growth, skill development and staying updated on industry trends, the people practitioner position can be effectively achieved and managed in future (Mhone, 2022). This will enable me to ensure that I provide more strategic input to the achievements of my organisation's goals in sourcing, managing and developing a competent workforce.

AC 3.2. Self-Assessment of Strengths, Weaknesses and Areas for Development and Feedback for CIPD Associate Level HR Manager

Core Behaviours of HR Manager:

- Professionalism and Ethics: HR managers possess an understanding of the CIPD Code of Professional Conduct while undertaking professional responsibilities.
- Resourcing and Talent Planning: HR managers are Involved in building, sustaining and upgrading the human resource management system in an organisation.

Self-Reflection about Strengths, Weaknesses and Developing Areas:

- Strengths: I believe I possess a strong sense of professionalism and ethical conduct. I am
 committed to performing with utmost integrity, confidentiality, and fairness in all kinds
 of situations. I always try to be up-to-date on all the latest HR regulations and strive to
 embody the CIPD Code of Professional Conduct.
- Weaknesses: I understand the correct methods of recruitment but I have no prior experience in most of the broader areas of resourcing and talent management. I fail to identify and address barriers to development in the employees. At other times it can be

- difficult to offer feedback constructively and this can be a major issue when one wants to encourage candid responses.
- Development Areas: Practical experience in having hard conversations with people can
 be awkward but necessary for personal and professional development. Creating a more
 easy-going environment can facilitate a culture of trust, well-being, and purpose both
 internally and externally in the person and organisation.

To gain a broader perspective, I spoke with experts in HRM. They agreed to my identified weaknesses and areas needed to be developed. They said that I excel at conducting efficient interviews and evaluations. They suggested that to further develop my expertise, I should consider seeking opportunities to participate in workforce planning initiatives and learn about talent mapping strategies.

Actionable steps based on the feedback:

- I will participate in future workforce planning processes and complete courses on recruitment and creating talent pools.
- In order to continuously update myself with the changes or updates to the CIPD Code of Professional Conduct.

This self-assessment strengthens my confidence in my professional conduct and ethical decision-making as I aspire to become an HR manager in near future. However, it also helped to identify the areas which needed to be developed through actively seeking opportunities and continuous learning. So, I can become a well-rounded HR professional who prioritises human resources above all.

AC 3.3. CPD Plan: Addressing Development Needs for HR Management Post. Justification of the Chosen Formal and Informal Developmental Activities

Looking at the CIPD Associate Level HR Manager core behaviours I have self-assessed against I found out that I have challenges in Resourcing, talent planning and maintaining emotional intelligence. The following section encompasses the CDP plan inculcating both formal and informal sets of development and learning activities to combat the lapses present in me for the HR managerial position.

Formal Learning:

- CIPD Certificate in Resourcing and Talent Management: This is a twelve-month program that enables the acquisition of knowledge in workforce planning, talent acquisition and management of the talent pool. (Estimated time commitment: Learner engagement (10 hrs/week)
- Online Course: Talent Mapping for Business Success: This type of online course focuses on the specifics of talent mapping strategies and their utilisation in the talent acquisition processes. (Estimated time commitment: 2 weeks)

Informal Learning:

- Volunteer for Workforce Planning Project: I will show a willingness to my manager to be involved in the future workforce planning processes. This will give real-life experience on how the knowledge learnt in the classroom can be put into practice. (Estimated time commitment: This will depend on the size of the project that the business wishes to undertake
- Join HR Talent Acquisition Online Community: It is recommended that access to practice forums with other professionals will be very fruitful and resourceful in terms of strategies for talent acquisition. (Estimated time commitment: The academic English writing (1 hour/week).

The rationale for Selection:

- This qualification structure of the CIPD Certificate is ideal for acquiring a comprehensive knowledge of the resourcing and talent planning frameworks.
- The course is conducted online, and as for the key aspect I defined as an area of development – talent mapping, it seems quite suitable.
- Engaging in an actual project will help in cementing knowledge and working with other professionals in the field.
- Interacting with the online community helps one to keep learning as well as being exposed to new ideas in the talent acquisition discipline.

Review and Evaluation:

I will record my learning process in this CPD plan by creating a learning diary where I will list down the activities done, what was learnt, and how it was implemented at the workplace. I will revisit this plan after six months to check my progress and see if I need to further develop any of the skills. With this CPD plan, I shall be well-positioned to gain the required skills and practical

experience in resourcing and talent planning that will enable me to support the organisation's talent management agenda more effectively.

AC 3.4. Effectiveness of Developmental Activities in Respect to Enhancing Working Behaviour and Performance

Developmental Activity 1: Communication Skills Workshop

Some of the topics covered in this workshop included the use of active listening, assertiveness, kinds of nonverbal communication and navigating communication with different populations. The role-play assignments were especially effective as they provided me with opportunities to apply the chosen communication strategies based on the other person's behaviour and circumstances.

Impact: After the given workshop I realised the extent to which I have advanced in the skill of interacting with colleagues and stakeholders. I listen to them with the intent to grasp the view they hold and adjust my methods of speaking to reach them. This has made my team more cohesive than before and the communication between the team members has been enhanced.

Developmental Activity 2: Online Course: Managing Conflict in the Workplace

This online course outlined the ways of managing conflict because it is inevitable in any organisation. The various types of conflict-handling techniques were especially useful in enabling the selection of the right approach to use when handling a particular conflict.

Impact: This course provided me with the strategies and assertiveness to confront coworkers about their performance. I am now able to determine the source of conflict and use the appropriate conflict intervention strategies for the development of mutual solutions. This has led to an improvement in the work climate in the organisation and employees work in harmony.

Developmental Activity 3: Mentorship Program

Being in a mentorship program with a senior HR professional made me learn various other HR practices and strategic decisions. The weekly meetings with the mentor allowed me to gain a more extensive focus on my position in the company.

Impact: From this mentorship, I was able to learn about some of the strategic areas of human resource management. I am now able to look at my work in a more progressive manner and be involved in strategic planning for the HR department other than the daily duties.

All these three development activities have been of great importance and have influenced my work behaviour and performance in this organisation. There are various ways in which I have benefited from this course; I have enhanced my communication skills, conflict resolution skills, and knowledge of strategic human resource management. This reflection proves that learning and development for the position of HR manager should be a continuous process so that changes can be managed and embraced in the organisation.

References

Abdul Muhi, F., 2022. Evaluating the Experience of Middle-Managers towards the Competency-Based Self-Assessment in the Malaysian Public Service (Doctoral dissertation, Open Access Te Herenga Waka-Victoria University of Wellington). https://openaccess.wgtn.ac.nz/articles/thesis/Evaluating_the_Experience_of_Middle-Managers_towards_the_Competency-Based_Self-Assessment_in_the_Malaysian_Public_Service/19671501

Alkashami, M., 2022. Investigating the impact of CIPD Level three for the skills shortage on the private sector in the kingdom of Bahrain. International Journal of Operations and Quantitative Management, 28(1). https://submissions.ijoqm.org/index.php/ijoqm/article/view/17

Alwi, M., Asmony, T. and Sakti, D.P.B., 2024. The Effect of Green Human Resources Management of Employee Green Behavior at PT Aerofood Catering Service (ACS) Batujai: With Intervening Green Knowledge Sharing. *International Journal of Multicultural and Multireligious Understanding*, 11(4), pp.23-37. https://ijmmu.com/index.php/ijmmu/article/viewFile/5615/4651

Anvari, R., Janjaria, M. and Shirvani, A., 2024. Role of line managers in human resource activities: evidence from a case study. *Intangible Capital*, 20(1), pp.43-59. https://upcommons.upc.edu/bitstream/handle/2117/407757/2279-8481-1-PB.pdf?sequence=1

Batool, F., Mohammad, J. and Awang, S.R., 2022. The effect of servant leadership on organisational sustainability: the parallel mediation role of creativity and psychological resilience. Leadership & Organization Development Journal, 43(1), pp.71-95. https://www.emerald.com/insight/content/doi/10.1108/LODJ-06-2021-0264/full/html

Baughan, R.H.E., 2022. Competence management in the UK heritage railway industry. https://era.ed.ac.uk/handle/1842/38784

Berrington, C., 2022. The HR occupation: the gendered nature of its legitimacy (Doctoral dissertation, University of Warwick). https://wrap.warwick.ac.uk/174021/

Blake-Beard, S., Shapiro, M. and Ingols, C., 2021. A model for strengthening mentors: frames and practices. International journal of environmental research and public health, 18(12), p.6465. https://www.mdpi.com/1660-4601/18/12/6465

Cunningham, D.E., Luty, S., Alexander, A., Waqa, V. and Zlotos, L., 2020. The future of CPD for general practitioners, registered pharmacy staff and general practice nurses in Scotland-qualitative responses from a national survey. Education for Primary Care, 31(1), pp.7-14. https://www.tandfonline.com/doi/abs/10.1080/14739879.2019.1690400

Fahy, M., Dowling-Hetherington, L., Phillips, D., Moloney, B., Duffy, C., Paul, G., Fealy, G., Kroll, T. and Lafferty, A., 2024. 'If my boss wasn't so accommodating, I don't know what I would do': Workplace supports for carers and the role of line managers and co-workers in mediating informal flexibility. *Human Resource Management Journal*. https://onlinelibrary.wiley.com/doi/pdf/10.1111/1748-8583.12566

Fasae, F.B.K., 2024. The Secretarial Profession in the Digital Age: Adapting to Technological Advancements. *International Journal of Management Technology*, 11(2), pp.21-33. https://tudr.org/id/eprint/3021/1/The%20Secretarial%20Profession%20in%20the%20Digital https://tudr.org/id/eprint/3021/1/The%20Secretarial%20Profession%20in%20the%20Digital

Isede, E.N., 2022. An Analysis of Learning and Development Offerings as a Motivational Tool for Productivity in Organisations (A Qualitative Study of Human Resource Management Practitioners in Ireland) (Doctoral dissertation, Dublin, National College of Ireland). https://norma.ncirl.ie/id/eprint/5877

Johnston, A. and Johnston, L., 2024, May. Considering the mystery of professionalism: Further Education in the UK. In *Forum for Education Studies* (Vol. 2, No. 2, pp. 1-14). Academic Publishing Pte Ltd. https://ray.yorksj.ac.uk/id/eprint/9914/1/1209-Article%20Text-4801-1-10-20240528.pdf

Karas, M., Sheen, N.J., North, R.V., Ryan, B. and Bullock, A., 2020. Continuing professional development requirements for UK health professionals: a scoping review. BMJ open, 10(3), p.e032781. https://bmjopen.bmj.com/content/10/3/e032781.abstract

Markey, K., Prosen, M., Martin, E. and Repo Jamal, H., 2021. Fostering an ethos of cultural humility development in nurturing inclusiveness and effective intercultural team working. Journal of nursing management, 29(8), pp.2724-2728. https://onlinelibrary.wiley.com/doi/abs/10.1111/jonm.13429

Marshall, T., Keville, S., Cain, A. and Adler, J.R., 2022. Facilitating reflection: a review and synthesis of the factors enabling effective facilitation of reflective practice. Reflective Practice, 23(4), pp.483-496. https://www.tandfonline.com/doi/abs/10.1080/14623943.2022.2064444

McBride, A., Collins, C., Osborne, B. and McVeigh, H., 2022. Does continuing professional development enhance patient care? A survey of Irish based general practitioners: Successful implementation of mandatory CPD in Irish General Practice. BMC Medical Education, 22(1), p.220. https://link.springer.com/article/10.1186/s12909-022-03292-z

Mhone, K., 2022. Prerequisites, Opportunities and Limitations of Positive Action in Recruitment: Implications for the Work of Hiring Managers and HR Professionals. https://www.theseus.fi/handle/10024/755819

Owen, J.A., Skelton, J.B. and Maine, L.L., 2020. Advancing the adoption of continuing professional development (CPD) in the United States. Pharmacy, 8(3), p.157. https://www.mdpi.com/2226-4787/8/3/157

Parameswaran, H., 2020. StrAtegic HumAn reSource development—A mAnoeuvre for future competencieS. Serbian Journal of Management, 15(2), pp.353-370. https://www.aseestant.ceon.rs/index.php/sjm/article/view/22393

Paton, M., Zakeri, B., Rowland, P., Tavares, W., Williams, B.W., Schneeweiss, S. and Wiljer, D., 2024. Decision making in continuing professional development organisations during a crisis. Medical Education, 58(6), pp.722-729. https://asmepublications.onlinelibrary.wiley.com/doi/abs/10.1111/medu.15265

Petzer, M., 2020. Coronavirus and the workforce: how can we limit redundancies?. http://researchonline.ljmu.ac.uk/id/eprint/12960/1/coronavirus-workforce-redundancies 20200402T170659.pdf

Rieckhoff, B.S., Ockerman, M., Proweller, A. and Wolfinger, J., 2020. Building teacher empathy and culturally responsive practice through professional development and self-reflection. Journal of Vincentian Social Action, 5(2), p.8. https://scholar.stjohns.edu/jovsa/vol5/iss2/8/

Roche, W., 2021. An Exploratory Study on how the Potential Talent of Social Care Workers is Nurtured and Developed within an Irish Social Care Setting (Doctoral dissertation, Dublin, National College of Ireland). https://norma.ncirl.ie/id/eprint/5347

Roper, I. and Higgins, P., 2020. Hidden in plain sight? The human resource management practitioner's role in dealing with workplace conflict as a source of organisational–professional power. *Human Resource Management Journal*, 30(4), pp.508-524. https://onlinelibrary.wiley.com/doi/pdfdirect/10.1111/1748-8583.12311

Russo, T., Addabbo, T., Curzi, Y. and Pistoresi, B., 2020. Human resource practices, job satisfaction and perceived discrimination (s) at the workplace. International Business Research, 13(9), pp.63-87. https://iris.unimore.it/handle/11380/1208386

Shahzad, R.U., 2020. An Investigation into Human Resource Development (HRD) Needs of Nurses. The Case of Public Health Sector, Pakistan (Doctoral dissertation, University of Bradford). https://bradscholars.brad.ac.uk/handle/10454/19166

Surono, S., Pratama, D. and Budiono, A., 2024. Study on Mapping of Qualification, Occupation, and Competence in Human Resources Management to Improve Link and Match Between Industry and Education Program. *Asian Journal of Engineering, Social and Health*, *3*(4), pp.792-812. Surono, S., Pratama, D. and Budiono, A., 2024. https://ajesh.ph/index.php/gp/article/download/299/367

TADESSE, H., 2020. ASSESSMENT OF EMPLOYEES'PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT PRACTICE: THE CASE OF COMMERCIAL BANK OF ETHIOPIA, ADDIS ABABA AREA

(Doctoral dissertation, ST. MARY'S UNIVERSITY). http://repository.smuc.edu.et/handle/123456789/5507

Taylerson, L., 2020. Growing Concerns: practitioners' positions on engaging in Continuing Professional Development in a deregulated FE and Skills sector (Doctoral dissertation, University of Sunderland). http://sure.sunderland.ac.uk/id/eprint/13406/

Taylor, S., Ryan, M. and Elphinstone, L., 2021. Generating genuine inclusion in higher education utilising an original, transferable, and customisable model for teaching and assessing reflective learning. Reflective Practice, 22(4), pp.531-549. https://www.tandfonline.com/doi/abs/10.1080/14623943.2021.1933408

Thistlethwaite, J., McGirr, L. and Vial, T., 2023. Developing and evaluating a professional development plan pilot for doctors in unaccredited posts: A pilot study. Health Education in Practice: Journal of Research for Professional Learning, 6(1), pp.5-22. https://search.informit.org/doi/abs/10.3316/informit.052198231711660

Timming, A.R. and Macneil, J., 2023. Bridging human resource management theory and practice: Implications for industry-engaged academic research. *Human Resource Management Journal*, 33(3), pp.592-605. https://onlinelibrary.wiley.com/doi/pdfdirect/10.1111/1748-8583.12523

Zallio, M. and Clarkson, P.J., 2022. The Inclusion, Diversity, Equity and Accessibility audit. A post-occupancy evaluation method to help design the buildings of tomorrow. Building and Environment,

217,

p.109058.

https://www.sciencedirect.com/science/article/pii/S0360132322002979

